
 

Annual Council Agenda 
 
 6.00 pm Thursday, 25 June 2020 

via Microsoft Teams 

 
 
 

  
In accordance with Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2020, this meeting will be held on a virtual basis. Members of 

the Public can view a live stream of the meeting at: 

https://www.darlington.gov.uk/livemeetings 
 

 
1.   Attendance at Meeting.  

 
2.   Declarations of Interest.  

 
3.   The Mayor or Managing Director to make any announcements that may be 

necessary.  
 

4.   To elect a Mayor for the Municipal Year 2020 / 2021.  
 

5.   To appoint a Deputy Mayor for the Municipal Year 2020 / 2021.  
 

6.   Appointment to Committees 2020 / 2021. –  
Report of the Managing Director 
 (Pages 1 - 14) 
 

7.   Representation on Other Bodies 2020 / 2021. –  
Report of the Managing Director 
 (Pages 15 - 20) 
 

8.   To approve a programme of Ordinary Meetings of the Council for the 2020 / 2021 
Municipal Year. (Pages 21 - 22) 
 

9.   Coronavirus - Revised Democratic Arrangements –  
Report of the Managing Director 
 (Pages 23 - 32) 
 

 
Luke Swinhoe 

Assistant Director Law and Governance 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.darlington.gov.uk/livemeetings


Wednesday, 17 June 2020 
 
Town Hall  
Darlington. 
 
 
Membership 
Councillors Ali, Allen, Baldwin, Bartch, Bell, Boddy, Dr. Chou, Clarke, Cossins, 
Crudass, Crumbie, Mrs Culley, Curry, Donoghue, Dulston, Durham, Harker, 
Haszeldine, Heslop, Holroyd, Howarth, Howell, C L B Hughes, L Hughes, Johnson, 
B Jones, Mrs D Jones, Keir, Laing, Layton, Lee, Lister, Lucas, Marshall, McCollom, 
McEwan, Mills, Newall, M Nicholson, K Nicholson, Paley, Preston, Renton, A J Scott, 
Mrs H Scott, Snedker, Tait, Tostevin, Wallis and Wright 
 

If you need this information in a different language or format or you have any other 
queries on this agenda please contact Paul Dalton, Elections Officer, Resources Group, 
during normal office hours 8.30 a.m. to 4.45 p.m. Mondays to Thursdays and 8.30 a.m. 
to 4.15 p.m. Fridays Email: Paul.Dalton@darlington@gov.uk or Telephone 01325 
405805 



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

ANNUAL COUNCIL 
25 JUNE 2020 
 
 

APPOINTMENT TO COMMITTEES 2020/21 
 

 

Responsible Director – Paul Wildsmith, 
Managing Director 

 

 
SUMMARY REPORT 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To consider the appointment of Members to the various Committees for the 

2020/21 Municipal Year. 
 

Recommendation 
 
2. That:- 

 
(a) the appointment of Members to the various Committees, as detailed in the 

Appendix to the submitted report, be approved;  
 

(b) the appointment of Cabinet Members by the Leader and their respective 
Portfolios, as detailed in the Appendix to the submitted report, be noted; and 
 

(c) any consequential changes be made to the Council’s Constitution. 
 
Reasons 
 
3. The recommendations are supported to comply with the nominations received. 

 
Paul Wildsmith,  

Managing Director 
 

Background Papers 
No background papers were used in the preparation of the report. 
 
Lynne Wood: Extension 5803 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

S17 Crime and Disorder The report contributes to the prevention of 
crime and disorder, in a number of ways, 
through the involvement of Councillors in the 
work of those Committees. 

Health and Well Being The appointment of Councillors to the various 
Committees will enable the health and well-
being of the people of the Borough to be 
highlighted through the work, policies and 
decisions of those Committees. 

Carbon Impact and Climate 
Change 

The appointment of Councillors, will enable any 
carbon impact issues to be considered in the 
development of policies and other decisions 
through the work of those Committees. 

Diversity The report does not directly contribute to 
diversity, however the appointment of 
Councillors to the Committees will enable any 
diversity issues to be considered through the 
work of those Committees. 

Wards Affected This report does not immediately affect any 
wards within the Borough. 

Groups Affected This report does not have any direct impact on 
the various community groups, however, the 
work of the Committee may have an affect on 
those groups. 

Budget and Policy Framework  The appointment of Councillors will enable any 
Budget and Policy Framework issues to be 
considered when making decisions. 

Key Decision This is a non Executive decision. 

Urgent Decision This is not an urgent decision. 

One Darlington: Perfectly 
Placed 

The report contributes to the delivery of the 
objectives of the community strategy in a 
number of ways through the involvement of 
Councillors in the work of those Committees. 

Efficiency There are no direct efficiencies to the Council 
from the information within the report, however, 
the appointment of Councillors to the 
Committees will enable any efficiencies to be 
identified in the work of those Committees. 

Impact on Looked After 
Children and Care Leavers 

This report has no impact on Looked After 
Children or Care Leavers 

Page 2



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

MAIN REPORT 
 

Information and Analysis 
 
4. Attached to this report is a list of this Council’s Committees and Joint Committees, 

together with the nominations received to sit on the on those Committees. 
 

5. Also included within the list, for information purposes only, is the appointment of 
Cabinet Members to their respective Portfolios. The appointment to Cabinet is a 
decision for the Leader of the Council. 
 

Outcome of Consultation 
 
6. No formal consultation, other than with the political groups, was undertaken on the 

issues contained within the report. 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
-1 of 10- 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

 
 

 
CABINET/COMMITTEES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS – 2020/21 

 
 

CABINET PORTFOLIO 

1.  Councillor Clarke Children and Young People  

2.  Councillor Dulston Stronger Communities 

3.  Councillor Johnson Deputy Leader and Resources 

4.  Councillor Keir Local Services 

5.  Councillor Marshall Economy  

6.  Councillor Mills Adults 

7.  Councillor K Nicholson Health and Housing 

8.  Councillor Mrs Scott Leader of the Council 

 
 

GENERAL LICENSING COMMITTEE (12) (5x5x0x1x1) 

1.  Councillor Clarke 

2.  Councillor Crumbie 

3.  Councillor Donoghue 

4.  Councillor Dulston 

5.  Councillor Haszeldine 

6.  Councillor CLB Hughes 

7.  Councillor B Jones 

8.  Councillor Lee 

9.  Councillor Newall  

10.  Councillor K Nicholson 

11.  Councillor AJ Scott 

12.  Councillor Snedker 

 
 

GENERAL LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (5) 

5 Members to be drawn from the General Licensing Committee 

 
 
 

Page 5



 

 

  
-2 of 10- 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

LICENSING ACT 2003 COMMITTEE (12) (5x5x0x1x1) 

1.  Councillor Clarke 

2.  Councillor Crumbie 

3.  Councillor Donoghue 

4.  Councillor Dulston 

5.  Councillor Haszeldine 

6.  Councillor CLB Hughes 

7.  Councillor B Jones 

8.  Councillor Lee 

9.  Councillor Newall  

10.  Councillor K Nicholson 

11.  Councillor AJ Scott 

12.  Councillor Snedker  

 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (3) 

3 Members to be drawn from the Licensing Act 2003 Committee 

 
 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE (15) (7x6x1x1x0) 

1.  Councillor Allen 

2.  Councillor Clarke 

3.  Councillor Cossins 

4.  Councillor Johnson 

5.  Councillor Mrs D Jones 

6.  Councillor Heslop 

7.  Councillor CLB Hughes 

8.  Councillor Keir  

9.  Councillor Lee 

10.  Councillor Lister 

11.  Councillor Marshall 

12.  Councillor McCollom 

13.  Councillor Tait 

14.  Councillor Tostevin 

15.  Councillor Wallis 

 
 

 

Page 6



 

 

  
-3 of 10- 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

ADULTS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (11) (5x4x1x0x1) 

1.  Councillor Bell 

2.  Councillor Curry  

3.  Councillor Crumbie 

4.  Councillor Mrs Culley 

5.  Councillor Holroyd 

6.  Councillor Laing 

7.  Councillor Layton 

8.  Councillor M Nicholson 

9.  Councillor Preston  

10.  Councillor Renton 

11.  Councillor AJ Scott 

 
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (11) 
(5x5x0x0x1) 

1.  Councillor Ali 

2.  Councillor Bartch 

3.  Councillor Bell 

4.  Councillor Crudass 

5.  Councillor Mrs Culley  

6.  Councillor CLB Hughes 

7.  Councillor L Hughes 

8.  Councillor Lister 

9.  Councillor Lucas  

10.  Councillor Renton 

11.  Councillor Snedker 

 
 

COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (11) 
(5x4x1x1x0) 

1.  Councillor Allen 

2.  Councillor Bartch 

3.  Councillor Cossins 

4.  Councillor Mrs Culley  

5.  Councillor Donoghue 

6.  Councillor Durham 

7.  Councillor Haszeldine 

8.  Councillor McCollom 

9.  Councillor Renton 

10.  Councillor Tait 

11.  Councillor Wallis 

 

Page 7



 

 

  
-4 of 10- 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

ECONOMY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (11) (5x4x1x1x0) 

1.  Councillor Bartch  

2.  Councillor Boddy 

3.  Councillor Crudass 

4.  Councillor Durham  

5.  Councillor Harker  

6.  Councillor L Hughes 

7.  Councillor Mrs D Jones 

8.  Councillor McEwan 

9.  Councillor Paley 

10.  Councillor Renton 

11.  Councillor Tait 

 
 

HEALTH AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (10) (5x4x0x1x0) 

1.  Councillor Bell 

2.  Councillor Chou 

3.  Councillor Donoghue 

4.  Councillor Heslop 

5.  Councillor Layton 

6.  Councillor Lee 

7.  Councillor McEwan 

8.  Councillor Newall  

9.  Councillor Tostevin 

10.  Councillor Wright 

 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE (9) (4x3x1x0x0x1)* 

1.  Councillor Baldwin 

2.  Councillor Curry 

3.  Councillor Dulston (Cabinet Member with Stronger Communities 
Portfolio 

4.  Councillor Harker  

5.  Councillor L Hughes 

6.  Councillor Johnson (Cabinet Member with Resources Portfolio) 

7.  Councillor Marshall (Cabinet Member with Economy Portfolio) 

8.  Councillor McEwan 

9.  Councillor Mrs Scott (Leader of the Council) 

Page 8



 

 

  
-5 of 10- 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES CHIEF OFFICERS APPOINTMENTS PANEL (8) 
(4x3x1x0x0)* 

1.  Councillor Curry 

2.  Chair of Economy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 

3.  Councillor Harker  

4.  Councillor L Hughes 

5.  Councillor Johnson (Cabinet Member with Resources Portfolio 

6.  Councillor McEwan 

7.  Relevant Cabinet Member/Scrutiny Chair 

8.  Councillor Mrs Scott (Leader of the Council) 

 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES PANEL (SITTING AS AN APPOINTMENTS 
PANEL) (5) (2x2x1x0x0)* 

1.  Councillor Curry 

2.  Councillor Harker 

3.  Councillor Johnson (Cabinet Member with Resources Portfolio) 

4.  Councillor McEwan  

5.  Councillor Mrs H Scott (Leader of the Council) 

 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES PANEL (SITTING AS AN APPEALS COMMITTEE) 
(5) (2x2x1x0x0)* 

1.  Councillor Curry 

2.  Chair of Economy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 

3.  Councillor L Hughes 

4.  Councillor Johnson (Cabinet Member with Resources Portfolio) 

5.  Chris McEwan 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES PANEL (SITTING AS A JCC COMMITTEE) (5) 
(2x2x1x0x0)* 

1.  Councillor Boddy 

2.  Chair of Economy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 

3.  Councillor Harker  

4.  Councillor L Hughes  

5.  Councillor Johnson (Cabinet Member with Resources Portfolio) 

 

Page 9



 

 

  
-6 of 10- 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

APPRAISAL SUB-GROUP (8) (3x3x1x1x0) 

1.  Councillor Allen 

2.  Chair of Economy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 

3.  Councillor Harker  

4.  Councillor L Hughes 

5.  Councillor Johnson (Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member with 
Resources Portfolio) 

6.  Councillor McEwan 

7.  Councillor K Nicholson 

8.  Councillor Mrs Scott (Leader of the Council) 
 
 

LA GOVERNORS APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE (4) (1x1x1x0x1)* 

1.  Councillor Allen 

2.  Councillor Clarke (Cabinet Member with Children and Young People 
Portfolio) 

3.  Councillor Holroyd 

4.  Councillor Lucas  
 
 

MEMBERS STANDARDS HEARING COMMITTEE (5) (2x2x0x1x0) 

1.  Councillor Crudass 

2.  Councillor Crumbie 

3.  Councillor Johnson 

4.  Councillor AJ Scott 

5.  Councillor Wright 
 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE (6) (3x2x0x0x0x1) 

1.  Councillor Baldwin 

2.  Councillor Crudass 

3.  Councillor Durham  

4.  Councillor Howell 

5.  Councillor McEwan 

6.  Councillor Paley 

 

Page 10



 

 

  
-7 of 10- 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL 
(7) (2x2x1x1x1) 

Named Substitutes 

1.  Councillor Clarke (Cabinet 
Member with Children and 
Young People Portfolio) 

Councillor Bartch 

2.  Councillor Curry Councillor Boddy 

3.  Councillor CLB Hughes Councillor Heslop 

4.  Councillor Layton Councillor L Hughes 

5.  Councillor K Nicholson Councillor Tait 

6.  Councillor Marshall Councillor Renton 

7.  Councillor Snedker Councillor Holroyd 

 
 

RIGHTS OF WAY PANEL (3) (2x1x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Donoghue 

2.  Councillor Haszeldine 

3.  Councillor Renton 

 
 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD (5) (4x1x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Clarke (Cabinet Member with the Children and Young 
People Portfolio) 

2.  Councillor Harker (Leader of the Labour Group) 

3.  Councillor Mills (Cabinet Member with Adults Portfolio) 

4.  Councillor K Nicholson (C) (Cabinet Member with the Health and 
Housing Portfolio) 

5.  Councillor Mrs Scott (Leader of the Council) 

 
*Substitute Members are eligible to sit on these bodies, provided that at least 24 hours 
notice in advance of a meeting has been given to the Proper Officer by the Member 
who wishes to appoint a substitute.  In unforeseen circumstances, a shorter period of 
notice can be given.  The notice should indicate the name of the substitute Member. 
 

Page 11



 

 

  
-8 of 10- 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

CONSULTATION FORUM/SUBSIDIARY BODIES MEMBERSHIP 2020/21 
 

 

DARLINGTON PLANNING FORUM (7) (3x2x1x0x1) 

1.  Councillor Allen 

2.  Chair of Planning Committee 

3.  Chair of Communities and Local Services Scrutiny Committee 

4.  Councillor Holroyd 

5.  Councillor Marshall (Cabinet Member with Economy Portfolio) (C) 

6.  Councillor McEwan 

7.  Councillor Wallis 
 
 

TOWN CENTRE REFERENCE GROUP (3) (2x1x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Marshall (Cabinet Member with Economy Portfolio) (C) 

2.  Councillor McEwan  

3.  Councillor Mrs Scott (Leader of the Council) 
 
 

MONITORING AND CO-ORDINATION GROUP (5)  

1.  Chair of Communities and Local Services Scrutiny Committee 

2.  Chair of Economy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 

3.  Chair of Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee 

4.  Chair of Adults Scrutiny Committee 

5.  Chair of Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

  
-9 of 10- 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS 2020/21 
 
 

PARKING AND TRAFFIC REGULATIONS OUTSIDE LONDON (PATROL) 
ADJUDICATION COMMITTEE (2x0x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Dulston (Cabinet Member with Stronger Communities Portfolio) 

2.  Councillor Keir (Cabinet Member with Local Services Portfolio) 

 
 

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

PANEL (3) (2x1x0x0x0) Named Substitutes 

1.  Councillor Dulston Councillor Bartch 

2.  Councillor B Jones Councillor Mills 

3.  Councillor Wallis Councillor Heslop 

JOINT AUDIT COMMITTEE (1x0x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Mrs Scott 

 
SCRUTINY JOINT ARRANGEMENTS 

 

NORTH EAST REGIONAL HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (1) 
(1x0x0x0x0) 

1.  Chair of the Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

TEES VALLEY JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (3) (2x1x0x0x0) 

1.  Chair of Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee 

2.  Vice-Chair of Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee 

3.  Councillor Newall (Member of the Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee) 
 
 

DURHAM DARLINGTON AND TEESSIDE, 
HAMBLETON, RICHMONDSHIRE AND 
WHITBY STP JOINT OVRVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (3) (2x1x0x0x0) 

Named Substitutes 

1.  Chair of Health and Housing Scrutiny 
Committee) 

Councillor  

2.  Vice-Chair of Health and Housing 
Scrutiny Committee 

Councillor 

3.  Councillor Newall Councillor McEwan 

 

Page 13



 

 

  
-10 of 10- 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

TEES VALLEY COMBINED AUTHORITY (TVCA) 

Part A – Statutory Committees and Local Enterprise Partnership Board 

Member Named Substitutes 

CABINET (1) (1x0x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Mrs Scott (Leader of the 
Council)  

Councillor Johnson (Deputy Leader of 
the Council) 

TEES VALLEY LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP BOARD (1) (1x0x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Mrs Scott (Leader of the Council) 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE (2) (2x0x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Keir (Cabinet Member 
with Local Services Portfolio)  

Councillor Marshall (Cabinet Member 
with Economy Portfolio) 

2.  Councillor Mrs Scott (C) (Leader of 
the Council) 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (3) (2x1x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Harker Councillor Haszeldine 

2.  Councillor D Jones Conservative Vacancy 

3.  Councillor Renton Conservative Vacancy 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (1) (0x1x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Crudass Councillor Keir 

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL (1) (1x0x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor D Jones 

Part B – Non-Statutory Partnership/Advisory Boards 

EDUCATION, EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS PARTNERSHIP BOARD (1) (1x0x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Clarke (Cabinet Member with Children and Young People Portfolio) 

CULTURE AND TOURISM THEMATIC PARTNERSHIP (1) (1x0x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Keir (Cabinet Member with Local Services Portfolio) 

LAND COMMISSION (1) (1x0x0x0x0) 

1.  Councillor Marshall (Cabinet Member with Economy Portfolio) 

 

Page 14



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

ANNUAL COUNCIL 
DATE 25 JUNE 2020 
 
 

 
 

 

REPRESENTATION ON OTHER BODIES 2020/21 
 

 

Responsible Director – Paul Wildsmith, Managing Director  
 

 
SUMMARY REPORT 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To consider this Council’s representation on other bodies for the 2020/21 Municipal 

Year, to which Council appoints. 
 

Recommendation 
 
2. It is recommended that the nominations to the other bodies, as detailed in 

paragraph 6 of the main report for the 2020/21 Municipal Year, be approved. 
 

Reasons 
 
3. The recommendation is supported to comply with the nominations received from 

the Political Groups. 
 

Paul Wildsmith, 
Managing Director 

 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
No background papers were used in the preparation of the report. 
 
Lynne Wood : Extension 5803 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

S17 Crime and Disorder The report contributes to the prevention of 
crime and disorder, in a number of ways, 
through the involvement of local elected 
representatives in a number of outside bodies. 

Health and Well Being The appointment of local elected 
representatives to various outside bodies will 
enable the health and well-being of the people 
of the Borough to be highlighted through the 
work, policies and decisions of those bodies. 

Carbon Impact and Climate 
Change 

The appointment of local elected 
representatives to a range of key local and 
national bodies, will enable any carbon impact 
issues to be considered in the development of 
policies and other decisions through those 
bodies. 

Diversity The report contributes to diversity in a number 
of ways through the involvement of local 
elected representatives on a range of key local 
and national bodies, and the development of 
policies and other decisions through those 
bodies. 

Wards Affected This report does not immediately affect any 
wards within the Borough. 

Groups Affected This report does not have any affect on any 
particular parts of the community. 

Budget and Policy Framework  This report does not recommend a change to 
the Council’s budget or policy framework. 

Key Decision This is a non Executive decision. 

Urgent Decision This is not an urgent decision. 

One Darlington: Perfectly 
Placed 

The report contributes to the delivery of the 
objectives of the community strategy in a 
number of ways through the involvement of 
local elected representatives on a range of key 
local and national bodies, and the development 
of policies and other decisions through those 
bodies. 

Efficiency There are no direct efficiencies to the Council 
from the information within this report. 

Impact on Looked After 
Children and Care Leavers 

This report has no impact on Looked After 
Children or Care Leavers 

Page 16



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

MAIN REPORT 
 

Information and Analysis 
 
4. Listed below are details of appointments to be made by Council to other bodies, 

which have, for ease of reference, been listed in alphabetical order. 
 

5. In accordance with this Council’s Constitution, all other appointments to outside 
bodies will be made by Cabinet. 
 

6. The details below show the current appointments to other bodies :- 
 

Name of Body or 
Organisation 

Conservative and Independent Group 
Representation 

Labour, Liberal 
Democrat and 
Green Group 
Representation 
 

Association of 
Councillors 
 

  

(a) General 
Management 
Committee 

Councillor Mrs Scott - 

   
(b) Northern Branch 

Committee 
Councillor Mrs Scott - 

   
Association of North 
East Councils 

  

   
(a) Leaders’ and 

Elected Mayors’ 
Group 

Councillor Mrs Scott (Leader of the 
Council) (Councillor Johnson (Deputy 
Leader as named substitute)) 

- 

   
(b) Collaborative 

Procurement Sub-
Committee 

Councillor Johnson (Cabinet Member 
with Resources Portfolio)  

 

   
(c) North East Culture 

Partnership 
Councillor Keir (Cabinet Member with 
Local Services Portfolio) 

- 

   
(d) Resources Task 

and Finish Review 
Group 

Councillor Johnson (Cabinet Member 
with Resources Portfolio)  

- 

   
(e) Health and Well 

Being Chairs 
Network 

Councillor K Nicholson (Chair of the 
Health and Well Being Board) 

- 

   
   
Combined Fire 
Authority 

Councillors B Jones and Lee 
(Councillors Mrs H Scott and Dulston 
as respective named substitutes) 

Councillors 
Crumbie and AJ 
Scott (Councillors 
Heslop and L 

Page 17



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Name of Body or 
Organisation 

Conservative and Independent Group 
Representation 

Labour, Liberal 
Democrat and 
Green Group 
Representation 
 

Hughes as 
respective named 
substitutes)  

   
Combined Fire 
Authority :- 

  

   
(a) Appointments 

Panel 
Councillor B Jones  

   
(b) Appeals 

Committee 
Councillor B Jones  

   
(c) Audit and Risk 

Committee 
Councillor Lee  

   
(d) Finance and 

General Purpose 
Committee 

 Councillor Crumbie 

   
(e) Policy and 

Performance 
Committee 

Councillor Lee  

   
(f) Joint Consultative 

Committee 
 Councillor AJ Scott 

   
(g) Salary Review 

Group 
Councillor B Jones  

   
 Other Bodies  
   
(h) Local Government 

Association 
 Councillor AJ Scott 

    
(i) Community 

Interest Company 
 Councillor AJ Scott 

    
(j) Vital Fire Solutions 

Ltd 
 Councillor AJ Scott 

   
Cruse Bereavement Care 
(Tees Valley) 

One vacancy - 

   
Darlington and District 
Town Twinning 
Association Management 
Committee 

One Vacancy Councillor Ali 

   

Page 18



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Name of Body or 
Organisation 

Conservative and Independent Group 
Representation 

Labour, Liberal 
Democrat and 
Green Group 
Representation 
 

Darlington Community 
Carnival Committee 

 Councillors Ali and 
Wright 
 

   
Darlington Young Men’s 
Christian Association - 
Local Management 
Board 

 Councillor Boddy 

   
Local Government 
Association 

Councillor Mrs H Scott (Leader of the 
Council) and Councillor Johnson 
(Deputy Leader of the Council) 

Councillor Harker 
(Leader of the 
Opposition) 

   
Poor Moor Charity  Councillor McEwan 
   
Standing Advisory 
Council on Religious 
Education (SACRE) 

Councillor Clarke (Cabinet Member 
with Children and Young People 
Portfolio) and Chair of the Children 
and Young People Scrutiny 
Committee 

Councillors Curry 
and Heslop 

   
Willow Road Community 
Centre – Management 
Committee 

 Councillor L 
Hughes 
(Pierremont Ward 
Member) 

 
Outcome of Consultation 
 
7. No formal consultation, other than with the political groups, was undertaken on the 

issues contained within the report. 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

ANNUAL COUNCIL   
25 JUNE 2020 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF ORDINARY MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL 
FOR THE 2020/21 MUNICIPAL YEAR 

 
Thursday, 16th July 2020 

 
Thursday, 24th September 2020 

 
Thursday, 26th November 2020 

 
Thursday, 28th January 2021 

 
Thursday, 25th March 2021 

 
Thursday, 13th May 2021 

 
Thursday, 20th May 2021 (Annual Council) 

 
ALL MEETINGS COMMENCE AT 6.00 P.M. 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
$hy00xzco - 1 of 9 - 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

ANNUAL COUNCIL 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

 
CORONAVIRUS – REVISED DEMOCRATIC ARRANGEMENTS 

 

 
Responsible Cabinet Member - Councillor Charles Johnson 

Resources Portfolio 
 

Responsible Director - Paul Wildsmith,  
Managing Director 

 

 
SUMMARY REPORT 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. As a result of coronavirus, a number of changes and adjustments are needed to the 

way that meetings are held and to some of the conventions that apply.  Members 
are asked to note and approve the changes. 
 

Summary 
 
2. This report presents information to members on the approach that it is suggested 

that we take to holding meetings at this time.  
 

3. To help in facilitating members to attend meetings remotely, the Meetings 
(Coronavirus) Protocol, set out in Appendix 1, has been developed.  This will be 
included as an addendum to the Councils Constitution. 

 
Recommendation 
 
4. It is recommended that: 

 
(a) Members note the approach that is suggested for meetings that are held during 

the coronavirus pandemic. 
 

(b) The Meetings (Coronavirus) Protocol is adopted with immediate effect. 
 

(c) The Monitoring Officer is delegated to add the Meetings (Coronavirus) Protocol 
as an addendum to the Constitution and to make any consequential changes to 
the Constitution that are necessary. 
 

Reasons 
 
5. The recommendations are supported by the following reasons: - 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
$hy00xzco - 2 of 9 - 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

(a) To enable meetings of Councillors to go ahead with appropriate adjustments to 
take account of the coronavirus pandemic; 
  

(b) To give some flexibility moving forward with format for meetings, dependent on 
national and local conditions concerning the pandemic and the risks posed; 

 
(c) To provide some clarity about the way in which meetings will be held during the 

pandemic and that this is reflected in the Constitution.  
 

Paul Wildsmith 
Managing Director  

 
Background Papers 
 

(a) The Coronavirus Act 2020. 
(b) The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 

Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020, No 392. 

(c) The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) (Amendment) (No. 3) 
Regulations 2020, No 558. 

 
Luke Swinhoe: Extension 5490 

 
 

S17 Crime and Disorder There are no specific crime and disorder 
implications 

Health and Well Being There are no specific Health and Well Being 
implications 

Carbon Impact and Climate 
Change 

There are no carbon impact implications in this 
report 

Diversity This report has no direct impact on diversity 
issues 

Wards Affected All Wards are affected equally 

Groups Affected All groups are affected equally 

Budget and Policy Framework  The decision does not represent a change to 
the budget and policy framework 

Key Decision This is not an executive decision 

Urgent Decision This is not an executive decision 

One Darlington: Perfectly 
Placed 

The report supports the Councils democratic 
model 

Efficiency The report has no direct implications for 
efficiency 

Impact on Looked After 
Children and Care Leavers 

This report has no impact on Looked After 
Children or Care Leavers  

 
 

  

Page 24



 

 

 
$hy00xzco - 3 of 9 - 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

MAIN REPORT 
 

Information and Analysis 
 
6. Following the Coronavirus lockdown on 23 March 2020 conventional ‘in person’ 

democratic meetings could not go ahead and were suspended because of public 
health concerns.  Since then the lockdown has been extended a number of times 
and some of the restrictions eased as the transmission risks and deaths have 
reduced.  It continues to be subject to review by Government.  
 

7. The requirements for local authorities’ meetings for attendance to be ‘in person’ at 
a physical location has been relaxed by Regulations1 which permit remote 
meetings or for some members to attend meetings remotely.  Remote attendance 
is where a member can hear and be heard (and where practicable see and be 
seen).  Attendance remotely is recognised as attendance in the same way as 
participation at a conventional ‘in person’ meeting.  

 
8. Although remote meetings are permitted there can be barriers to holding successful 

virtual meetings.  Connection problems can occur, such as some participants being 
unable to join the meeting, or a participants image/input freezes or is blurred/suffers 
from poor or intermittent sound during a meeting.  Some participants may forget to 
switch off their mic when they have finished speaking and background noise can be 
a problem.  Conversely some participants forget to switch their mic on.  There are 
issues about the scalability of virtual meetings, while smaller meetings can run 
successfully, more generally the greater the number of people involved, the more 
potential for difficulty in running a successful meeting.  The problems of scalability 
apply to a full Council meeting of some 60 people (50 or so members and 10 or so 
officers).  

 
9. Some members are concerned about their ability to participate in remote meetings 

because of a lack of familiarity with the technology or the lack of experience in 
participating in meetings of this nature.  This is something which can be assisted by 
support and training and experience of participating in this type of meeting will to 
also help in developing confidence and familiarity.  Chairing a virtual meeting will 
not be easy and is likely to require additional support.  

 
10. Recently there have been relaxations to the Coronavirus Regulations2.  Originally 

only indoor gatherings that were essential were permitted.  From the 1 June 2020 it 
has been possible for meetings that are reasonably necessary for work purposes to 
take place.  Members will be aware that Parliament has resumed sitting with social 
distancing arrangements in place, but also with the possibility of remote 
attendance.  

 
  

                                                 
1 Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 
2 Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) (Amendment) (No. 3) Regulations 2020, No 558 

Page 25



 

 

 
$hy00xzco - 4 of 9 - 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Approach to meetings 

11. Given the current position we need to make some changes and adjustments to the 
way meetings are held.  However, given the developing situation concerning the 
virus there also needs to be some flexibility of approach.  
 

12. In the context of Coronavirus, remote meetings present no risk from attendance 
and we do need to facilitate meetings to be held remotely.  For some members who 
are shielding or in a vulnerable category (or whose families include someone in a 
vulnerable group) this may be the only way that they are able to participate.  All 
meetings during the pandemic will at the very least need to have the possibility of 
members joining remotely. 

 
13. Subject to the prevailing coronavirus regulations and guidance, with some 

adjustments, it may be possible at some point in the future to restart conventional 
‘in person’ meetings but these cannot take place yet.  The level of risk will be 
greater than a meeting which is purely remote.  The risk is greater, with a larger 
number of people attending, the longer the meeting goes on for, the number of 
persons who are in vulnerable groups3 (or whose family members are vulnerable). 
There may be issues about queuing to enter and to leave the meeting, about going 
to toilets, touching surfaces/doors, pre and after meeting gatherings.  With larger 
meetings there is a greater risk that social distancing will break down. 

 
14. As matters stand at present the attendance by members ‘in person’ at meetings is 

only permissible when attendance is ‘reasonably necessary’.  Considering the 
current public health risks, it will be difficult to justify holding ‘in person’ meetings at 
the present time when it is possible to run remote meetings.  There may be some 
limited exceptions when some members need to attend ‘in person’ to participate in 
a remote meeting.  

 
15. This may be for instance when support is needed by officers to a member to Chair 

or participate in the meeting.  It is also the case that some members may have 
concerns about their ability to attend remotely or not have confidence in remote 
meetings and may want to attend in person.  We are working hard to ensure all 
members will be able to join and participate in meetings remotely.  We will also 
provide venues where members can join meetings remotely but with staff support 
available if needed.   

 
16. Because of the risks, and in consideration of the current regulations, at the moment 

all meetings are being planned to be held remotely rather as a conventional 
meeting at a physical venue.  

 
17. Moving forward, and depending on the prevailing regulations and guidance, every 

meeting will be reviewed ahead of the publication of the agenda to determine how it 
can proceed.  Following consultation by the Chairperson of the meeting and 
consultation with the members, the meeting summons/agenda for each meeting will 
indicate the way in which attendance at the meeting will take place.  The options 
will be either: 
 

 

                                                 
3 Those over 70 yrs, people with specified health conditions, pregnant women. 

Page 26



 

 

 
$hy00xzco - 5 of 9 - 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

(a) A remote only meeting, or 
(b) A hybrid meeting with some members joining remotely and some members 

joining in person. 
 

18. At the present time however, the intention is to have only remote meetings, but this 
will be kept under review. 
 

19. It will continue to be important for the public and press to be able to follow the 
meeting.  At the moment it will not be possible for this to be ‘in person’ and all 
meetings will be live streamed (with the exception of agenda items that need to be 
dealt with in private).  At meetings where the public can ask questions or make 
submissions there will need to be some modification of procedures to allow written 
submissions/questions only.  Members will play an important role in raising matters 
on behalf of the public at meetings. 

  
The Meetings (Coronavirus) Protocol 

 
20. As far as possible there will be adherence to the way that meetings are 

conventionally run, but there will need to be some modifications and procedural 
adjustments for remote meetings to proceed.  
 

21. It is suggested that a Protocol is adopted to indicate the changes and modifications 
that will take place for the duration of the coronavirus pandemic.  This protocol will 
stand alongside the provisions in the Constitution concerning the Councils 
procedures for meetings and where necessary it will modify them.  It is proposed to 
include the Protocol as an addendum to the Constitution. 
 

22. Attached at Appendix 1 is The Meetings (Coronavirus) Protocol. 
 

Consultation 
 
23. There has been consultation with Group Leaders and Committee Chairs.  
 
 
  

Page 27



 

 

 
$hy00xzco - 6 of 9 - 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
APPENDIX 1 

 
 

THE MEETINGS (CORONAVIRUS) PROTOCOL 
 
   
Purpose  
 
1. This Protocol is intended to supplement the procedures that apply to conventional 

‘in person’ meetings. 
 

2. The main purpose of this Protocol is to enable members to participate in meetings 
of the Council remotely.  

 
3. This Protocol has been written against the backdrop of the ongoing coronavirus 

pandemic of 2020 to enable meetings to take place against a backdrop of 
restrictions on public gatherings/meetings.  Remote attendance at meetings will 
allow Council, Cabinet and committees to transact business and fulfil designated 
functions.  The streaming of meetings will ensure public access is possible at a 
time when physical presence is not. 

 
Attendance  

 
4. Members who attend a meeting remotely will be considered as in attendance, as if 

they attended in a conventional meeting and their attendance will count for quorum 
and other purposes in the normal way.  

 
5. Should a Hybrid meeting be held (where some members attend ‘in person’ at a 

meeting venue and other attend remotely) both forms of attendance will count. 
Meetings will continue to be required to be quorate in accordance with the Council’s 
constitution.  

 
6. A member who is attending the meeting remotely who is intending to leave the 

meeting before it finishes should notify the chairperson just before leaving the 
meeting.  This will allow the minutes to note the agenda item at which point the 
member left the meeting.  

 
Operating Procedure  

 
7. Regulations4 require members who are in remote attendance to be able to hear, 

and where practicable see, and be heard and, where practicable, be seen by other 
members in attendance.    

 
8. At the start of the meeting the Chairperson will ask that all members attending the 

meeting to confirm they can hear and be heard during the meeting.  The meeting 
will not start until confirmation that all attendees are in compliance with these rules.  
This is a legal requirement. 

                                                 
4 Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 

Page 28



 

 

 
$hy00xzco - 7 of 9 - 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
9. Microsoft Teams will be used to support remote attendance.  Ordinarily both sound 

and video should be displayed when a member is speaking remotely.  
 

10. The chairperson has absolute discretion to pause or adjourn meeting proceedings.  
 

11. The virtual meeting will finish when the Chairperson formally closes the meeting.  
The chairperson should confirm with Democratic Services that the live stream and 
recording has been switched off.  

 
Managing contributions from members joining remotely 

 
12. All microphones, at the start of the meeting will be set to mute, apart from the 

chairperson and Democratic Services.   
 

13. Members attending remotely who wish to speak should ‘raise their electronic hand’, 
members who attend in person should raise their hand.  

 
14. The chairperson, with officer support as necessary, will un-mute microphones to 

allow the participation by individual members  
 

15. During the meeting, the ‘chat function’ will be available – this function should be 
used only when necessary to flag up matters that need to be drawn to the attention 
of everyone at the meeting. For individual concerns Members can contact a direct 
dial phone number or an email address, which will be supplied for each meeting. 

 
Non-Public Agenda Items/business 

 
16. If a meeting includes an agenda item that is required to be considered in private 

session this will be placed on the end of the agenda and dealt with after the public 
session has finished.  The statutory wording to exclude the press and public will be 
moved and the streaming of the meeting ended.  The Chairperson must confirm 
with Democratic Services that the streaming of the meeting has ceased. 

 
17. If it is moved that the meeting should move into private session part way through a 

meeting, before ceasing to stream the meeting the Chairperson must give an 
indication of at what time the streaming of the meeting will recommence 

 
Member interests   
 
18. Members will declare any interests in the normal way.  If a member declares a 

pecuniary interest (which means that they will have to leave the meeting) for an 
agenda item the member will be placed in the virtual ‘waiting area’ (where the 
member has no audio or visual contact with the meeting) while that item of 
business is considered.  The chairperson will need to ensure that the member who 
has been excluded during the agenda item is allowed back to the ‘virtual meeting’ 
once that item of business has been concluded.  

 
Conduct 
 

Page 29



 

 

 
$hy00xzco - 8 of 9 - 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

19. The chairperson can move that attendees should be removed from the meeting if 
their conduct falls short of the expected standards.  In the case of a remote 
attendee after receiving a direction the member should exit from the Microsoft 
Teams meeting.  

 
Voting  

 
20. The normal rules concerning the taking of votes will apply. 

 
21. Where a vote is required at a meeting, this will be undertaken on the voices of 

members.  The Democratic Officer or Monitoring Officer will ask each member in 
turn how they are casting their vote.  The minutes will not record the names of 
members or how they voted on an item unless a named vote has been called for.  

 
Technical Issues 
 
22. If there are connection or technical problems with remote attendance, members 

should email/phone the Democratic Officer to advise if they have ceased to be able 
to participate remotely. 

 
23. The live streaming of the meeting will need to be monitored and if there is a failure, 

the chairperson should be immediately advised. 
 

24. The chairperson will need to temporarily pause or adjourn the meeting while 
attempts are made to restore connections. 

 
25. If the meeting has to be adjourned, it will be reconvened as soon as is practicable.  

 
Public attendance and participation 

 
26. The public and press will for the time being be unable to attend meetings ‘in 

person’. Meetings will be streamed and details of how the public can view the 
meeting will be set out in the summons/agenda for each meeting, as well as on the 
website. 

 
27. The normal procedures relating to public participation at meetings will require some 

modification.  Questions and submissions by the public will need to be submitted to 
Democratic Services in writing 24 hours before the meeting.  Real time 
participation, such as supplementary questions raised at Council meetings by the 
public will not be possible.  The public can ask members to raise a matter on their 
behalf at meetings. 

 
28. Some meetings, by exception, may need to allow remote attendance by persons 

outside of the Council.  This will be at the discretion of the Chairperson.  A non-
exhaustive list could include, the Police and Crime Commissioner at Council 
Meetings, External Members of the Health and Well Being Board, the Police at 
Licensing Committees and submissions by persons applying for a licence or who 
may be subject to a decision to revoke a licence, applicants (or representatives) at 
Planning Committee.  

 
Standing of this protocol 

Page 30



 

 

 
$hy00xzco - 9 of 9 - 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
29. This Protocol shall modify the Council’s normal meeting arrangements and 

conventions, which will be interpreted to align with this Protocol. 
  

30. Changes or variations to this Protocol may be needed depending on particular 
circumstances and prevailing regulations and guidance.  Issues concerning this 
Protocol should be addressed to the Monitoring Officer.  

 
31. When the Regulations that permit remote meetings are discontinued by 

Government this Protocol will cease to have effect. 
 

 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Appointment to Committees 2020 / 2021.
	Item No. 6 - Appointment to Committees 2020-21 Appendix Updated

	7 Representation on Other Bodies 2020 / 2021.
	8 To approve a programme of Ordinary Meetings of the Council for the 2020 / 2021 Municipal Year.
	9 Coronavirus - Revised Democratic Arrangements

